
GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA 
 

There will be a regular meeting held by the Garberville Sanitary District Board of Directors at the  
GSD District Office 

919 Redwood Dr. Garberville, CA 
 

February 28, 2017 
5:00 p.m. – Open Public Session  

 
 

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the governing board regarding an open session item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection in the District Office located at 919 Redwood Dr. during normal business hours. 
 
I. REGULAR MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
 
II. ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM  
              Rio Anderson___, Linda Brodersen___, Doug Bryan___, Richard Thompson___, Gary Wellborn___  
 
III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA - Action to add or delete items from any portion of the agenda or to discuss any consent agenda 

items must be taken prior to adoption of the agenda. 
  
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT ON ANY ITEM ON THE CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 
 
V. CLOSED SESSION  

 
A. No items for closed session     

 
 

VI. OPEN SESSION 
A. Board Report of action, if any, taken during closed session—No action 

 
VII. COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE 

Up to fifteen minutes of this portion of the meeting are reserved for members of the public to address the Board on items not listed on the 
agenda and within the jurisdiction of the GSD Board.  Speakers are limited to 3 minutes.  The GSD Board is prohibited by law from 
taking action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the GSD Board does not 
respond to public comment at this time. 
 
General Public / Community Groups  

 
VIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS – Routine report of activities, operations, meetings / conferences held and/or 
attended by Board members, Staff, and General Manager 
Operations Staff- 

Office Staff - 700 Form Reminder 

Board Members-  

General Manager - Ralph Emerson pg. 4 

 

Government Code Section 54954.3 provides that the public will have an opportunity to address the Board on any item described on a regular or 
special meeting either before or during the consideration of that item.  The Board reserves the right to limit the time of presentation by individuals 
and groups 
 
 
 
 
 1



 
 

 
IX. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

A. CONSENT AGENDA          
Notice to the Public 

All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and all will be enacted by one motion and voice vote.  
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless the Board of Directors requests items to be removed from the 
Consent Agenda for separate action.  Any items will be considered after the motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 A.1 Approve Financials – pg. 5 
A.2 Approve 1/24/2017 Regular Meeting Minutes   Available at Meeting 
A.3        Operations Safety Report-  pg. 15 
A.4        Correspondence  
 Connection Fee for Hospital CT Unit  pg. 16 
 Measure Z Expenditures Application  pg. 17 
 Planning Department Response – Town Square Restroom pg. 21 
 

                  Motion:  Second:  Vote: 
  
 

B. GENERAL BUSINESS – Action items 
                                                                                                         Notice to the Public  
                                   The Board of Directors will allow public comment on agenda items although any person who wishes to speak on an  
                                   agenda item must submit a request prior to the meeting being called to order. You will be given 5 minutes on each  
                                   agenda item that you wish to comment and then the Board of Directors will discuss the item amongst themselves 
                                   with no other public comment.      

 

  B.1 Open Bids for 2012 Chevy Silverado      
                                               (discussion-possible action) 
                                        Motion:                         Second:                          Vote:           
 
  B.2 Mr. Butterworth request for multi family charges   pg. 22 
                                                (discussion-possible action) 
                                        Motion:                       Second:                           Vote: 
 
  B.3 Board Committees-Appointments   pg. 27 
                                               (discussion-possible action)  
 
                          B.4       SDRMA Nominations for Board Member—pg. 28 
                                                (discussion-possible action)     
                                         Motion:                      Second:                            Vote: 
 
                          B.5       CSDA Nominations for Board Member – pg. 46 
                                                 (discussion-possible action) 
                                        Motion:                      Second:                            Vote:   
   
  B.6 Reschedule Election of Governing Board Members pg. 51 
   Resolution No 17-005 (discussion-possible action)                                 
                                        
 

C. POLICY REVISION / ADOPTION  
 

  C.1     Policy Manual updates-Section job descriptions –Appendix B-Operators     pg. 58  
                                             (second reading) 
   
                          
                        C.2     Water Ordinance-Article 4: Section 4.9 water Service   pg. 72 
                                                (discussion-possible action)  second reading—resolution 17-004 
                                        Motion:                         Second:                          Vote:     
       2



                          C.3    Collection of late Service Charges              pg. 74 
                                                (discussion-possible action)  Resolution 17-001   (Roll Call)  
                                        Motion:                           Second:                          Vote: 
 
 
                          
                                          
 
 
 
                                              
                         
 
               
 
X. ITEMS FOR NEXT BOARD MEETING 

1. Wallan road tank Easement 
2. Organizational Chart—1st reading 
3. 2017 Master Calendar 
4. Office Job Descriptions—1st reading 

 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Posting of Notice at the District Office no later than February 24, 2017:  Agenda is emailed to the local newspapers and those who have requested 
an agenda in writing or e-mail.  
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a special accommodation to participate, please contact the Garberville 
Sanitary District Office at (707)923-9566 at least 48 hours in advance. 

3



Garberville Sanitary District 
PO Box 211 

Garberville, CA. 95542 
(707)923-9566 

 
 
 
 

GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
Date: February 28, 2017 

 
 
There have been numerous storms and critical problems which have arisen during the past month 
but staff has worked hard to solve the problems expeditiously while diligently staying up all 
night as needed to insure safe drinking water is provided to the GSD customers. 
 
 I want to thank Gary & Rich for meeting with me about the rate study and although a lot of 
information was discussed along with sharing ideas, we are not yet ready to present a 
recommendation to the Board. We will be meeting again prior to the March meeting and should 
have a recommendation for you to consider. 
 
 I missed the deadline last year to apply for Measure Z money but have submitted an application 
this year to replace 14 fire hydrants at a cost of $112,000. I want to thank Gary and Shon 
Wellborn along with Estelle Fennel for their input on this application process. I am hopeful that 
we can receive the funding for these hydrants and be able to satisfy our responsibility to replace 
the failing hydrants. 
 
 I am working with Andy Sundquist and Jennie Short on grant applications and shovel ready 
plans for upcoming projects. Bear Canyon reroute, tank replacements and infrastructure upgrades 
are among projects I am seeking funding. 

 
I have been working with Legal Counsel and Jennie Short to correct the mistakes and inaccurate 
information in the draft audit which is ready to be signed by Linda and sent to Keith Borges. A 
copy of those corrections will be provided at the meeting and we will be ready to receive the 
final audit for approval. 

 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted: 
 
Ralph Emerson 

4



 

Financial Report as of January 31, 2017
1 Operating Account $40,480.44
2 WRF Account $75,945.52
3 SRF Account $80,112.92
4 Water Enterprise Fund $46,288.13
5 County Treasury - Sewer Reserve $344,370.84
6 County  Treasury - Water Reserve $236,225.85
7 Petty Cash & Cash Drawer $297.48
8 $823,721.18
9 Revenue and Expenses for December (1-1-17 to 1-31-17)

10 Revenue
11 Water Charges $35,584.14
12 Sewer Charges $29,397.18
13 Late Charges $340.00
14 Connection Fees $0.00
15 Other Revenue $135.00
17 Total Revenue $65,456.32
18 Expenses
19 Administrative $12,526.96
20 Payroll $14,413.35
21 Rent $835.00
22 Sewer ( PR, monitoring, repairs & Utilities) $6,321.74
23 Water ( PR, monitoring, pumping, repairs, & Utilities $14,936.78
24 Total  Expenses $49,033.83
25 Net Operating Revenue $16,422.49
26 Depreciation
27 Water Depreciation $29,499.00
28 Sewer Depreciation $14,546.00
29 Total Depreciation $44,045.00
30 Interest expense $851.85
31 Interest income $60.12
32 NET INCOME -$28,414.24

 

5



 9:23 AM
 02/21/17
 Accrual Basis

 Garberville Sanitary District
 Register QuickReport

 January 2017

Date Num Memo Amount
1 101 Netlink
2 01/10/2017 8512 internet -229.00
3 Total 101 Netlink -229.00
4 Anderson, Lucas, Somerville & Borges
5 01/10/2017 8513 Final Billiing on annual fiscal audit ending June 30  -2,000.00
6 Total Anderson, Lucas, Somerville & Borges -2,000.00
7 Bruce Whittle Electric
8 01/26/2017 8535 PLC - Solar Panel replacement and programming -14,600.00
9 Total Bruce Whittle Electric -14,600.00

10 Capital Bank & Trust
11 01/06/2017 32915 557880519 -611.59
12 01/06/2017 12915 025158148 -320.81
13 01/20/2017 13919 025158148 -311.35
14 01/20/2017 33919 557880519 -607.58
15 Total Capital Bank & Trust -1,851.33
16 Cash
17 01/09/2017 8511 to correct cash drawer amount -10.00
18 Total Cash -10.00
19 Crystal Springs Bottled Water
20 01/10/2017 8514 water -17.00
21 Total Crystal Springs Bottled Water -17.00
22 Dazey's Building Center
23 01/10/2017 8515 R&M and Supplies -996.62
24 Total Dazey's Building Center -996.62
25 EDD
26 01/06/2017 739124 499-0538-3 -707.56
27 01/06/2017 739107 499-0538-3 -520.53
28 01/20/2017 798680 499-0538-3 -511.01
29 01/20/2017 798685 499-0538-3 -597.73
30 Total EDD -2,336.83
31 Fluentstream Tech
32 01/02/2017 25181 office phones -114.51
33 Total Fluentstream Tech -114.51
34 Frontier Communications
35 01/10/2017 8516 Lease lines and land lines at plants -337.17
36 Total Frontier Communications -337.17
37 Garberville Rotary
38 01/10/2017 8517 1/17-3/17 lunches -180.00
39 Total Garberville Rotary -180.00
40 IRS
41 01/06/2017 52494 68-0296323 -2,786.08
42 01/20/2017 200618 68-0296323 -2,726.54
43 Total IRS -5,512.62
44 Jamie Corsetti, CPA
45 01/10/2017 8518 monthly accounting -600.00
46 Total Jamie Corsetti, CPA -600.00
47 KEENAN SUPPLY
48 01/10/2017 8519 sewer popper -187.12
49 Total KEENAN SUPPLY -187.12
50 Kolstad Land Surveyors
51 01/26/2017 8536 Meadows Tank  (Wallan Tank) Easement Researc -1,954.00
52 Total Kolstad Land Surveyors -1,954.00
53 NAPA
54 01/10/2017 8520 A/C Converter -1,035.03
55 Total NAPA -1,035.03
56 Nilsen Feed & Garden
57 01/26/2017 1/265826 Wheat Straw, seed mix for Wallan Tank Area -249.83
58 Total Nilsen Feed & Garden -249.83

6



 9:23 AM
 02/21/17
 Accrual Basis

 Garberville Sanitary District
 Register QuickReport

 January 2017

Date Num Memo Amount
59 North Coast Laboratories Ltd.
60 01/10/2017 8521 Monitoring -949.00
61 Total North Coast Laboratories Ltd. -949.00
62 PG&E
63 01/10/2017 8522 -4,561.56
64 Total PG&E -4,561.56
65 Pitney Bowes Purchase Power
66 01/10/2017 6236009 postage -208.99
67 Total Pitney Bowes Purchase Power -208.99
68 Ralph Emerson
69 01/10/2017 8523 11/16 phone -50.00
70 Total Ralph Emerson -50.00
71 Redwood Merchant Services
72 01/04/2017 1/4debit 12/16 bank card fees -94.54
73 01/31/2017 1/17bkcdfee 1/17 Bank Card Fees -86.94
74 Total Redwood Merchant Services -181.48
75 RENNER
76 01/10/2017 1/17debit Fuel -1,063.41
77 Total RENNER -1,063.41
78 Rural Community Assistance Program
79 01/03/2017 1/3debit Ln 6200-GSD-02 -4,717.81
80 Total Rural Community Assistance Program -4,717.81
81 SDRMA
82 01/23/2017 8533 Medical for December 2016 -3,176.28
83 Total SDRMA -3,176.28
84 Sentry III Center
85 01/23/2017 8534 rent -835.00
86 Total Sentry III Center -835.00
87 Umpqua Bank
88 01/20/2017 1/20debit 12/16 bank fees -119.79
89 Total Umpqua Bank -119.79
90 US Cellular
91 01/10/2017 8524 cell phones -343.35
92 Total US Cellular -343.35
93 USABLUEBOOK
94 01/10/2017 8525 Sampling Supplies -417.19
95 Total USABLUEBOOK -417.19
96 Working Person's Store
97 01/26/2017 1/26-5826 Jackets -138.24
98 Total Working Person's Store -138.24
99 WYCKOFF'S

100 01/10/2017 8526 R&M -119.83
101 Total WYCKOFF'S -119.83
102 Arreguin, Daniel J
103 01/05/2017 8504 -2,177.53
104 01/19/2017 8527 -1,938.17
105 Total Arreguin, Daniel J -4,115.70
106 Emerson, Ralph K
107 01/05/2017 8505 -2,689.01
108 01/19/2017 8528 -2,689.02
109 Total Emerson, Ralph K -5,378.03
110 Miller, Brian A
111 01/05/2017 8506 -1,475.14
112 01/19/2017 8529 -1,507.44
113 Total Miller, Brian A -2,982.58
114 Nieto, Mary
115 01/05/2017 8507 -461.07

7



 9:23 AM
 02/21/17
 Accrual Basis

 Garberville Sanitary District
 Register QuickReport

 January 2017

Date Num Memo Amount
116 01/19/2017 8530 -608.41
117 Total Nieto, Mary -1,069.48
118 Ruiz, Lori A
119 01/05/2017 8510 -59.44
120 01/19/2017 8531 -36.58
121 Total Ruiz, Lori A -96.02
122 Ruiz, Ricardo
123 01/05/2017 8508 -109.74
124 Total Ruiz, Ricardo -109.74
125 Stillwell, Christina
126 01/05/2017 8509 -808.61
127 01/19/2017 8532 -781.82
128 Total Stillwell, Christina -1,590.43
129 TOTAL -64,434.97

8



 9:57 AM
 02/21/17
 Accrual Basis

 Garberville Sanitary District
 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison

 As of January 31, 2017

Jan 31, 17 Jun 30, 16 $ Change
1 ASSETS
2 Current Assets
3 Checking/Savings
4 1005 · Umpqua Checking- Operating 40,480.44 110,627.79 (70,147.35)
5 1006 · Umpqua System Reserve  - Water 75,945.52 72,592.66 3,352.86
6 1007 · Umpqua System Reserve - Sewer 80,112.92 75,153.24 4,959.68
7 1011 · Water Enterprise Fund 46,288.13 46,192.82 95.31
8 1030 · County Treasury - Sewer Reserve 344,370.84 344,370.84 0.00
9 1031 · County Treasury - Water Reserve 236,225.85 236,225.85 0.00

10 1040 · Petty Cash 49.51 49.51 0.00
11 1050 · Cash Drawer 247.97 186.56 61.41
12 Total Checking/Savings 823,721.18 885,399.27 (61,678.09)
13 Accounts Receivable
14 11000 · Accounts Receivable - Other 215.00 415.00 (200.00)
15 Total Accounts Receivable 215.00 415.00 (200.00)
16 Other Current Assets
17 1100 · Accounts Receivable
18 1110 · Accts Receivable Over Payments (2,520.33) (809.85) (1,710.48)
19 1100 · Accounts Receivable - Other 77,547.08 90,007.92 (12,460.84)
20 Total 1100 · Accounts Receivable 75,026.75 89,198.07 (14,171.32)
21 1120 · A/R - Employee 0.00 256.30 (256.30)
22 1500 · Prepaid Insurance 10,443.12 4,164.15 6,278.97
23 1501 · Prepaid Workers Comp 4,335.47 0.00 4,335.47
24 1502 · Prepaid Expenses 1,425.00 0.00 1,425.00
25 1510 · Prepaid Licenses and Permits 8,140.44 0.00 8,140.44
26 1550 · Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (5,000.00) (5,000.00) 0.00
27 Total Other Current Assets 94,370.78 88,618.52 5,752.26
28 Total Current Assets 918,306.96 974,432.79 (56,125.83)
29 Fixed Assets
30 Fire Hydrant Project 23,980.03 0.00 23,980.03
31 CIP - Leino Ln 585.00 585.00 0.00
32 CIP - Bear Canyon Aerial 1,236.10 576.10 660.00
33 CIP - Wallan Road Tank 58,028.00 0.00 58,028.00
34 DWTP (Water) 2015 4,968,104.88 4,968,104.88 0.00
35 Tobin Well Project 2014 40,189.31 40,189.31 0.00
36 Melville Project Lines 2015 59,612.79 59,612.79 0.00
37 Alderpoint Tank Project (Water) 671,516.84 671,516.84 0.00
38 Collection Facilities
39 Cost - Coll Fac 44,170.59 44,170.59 0.00
40 Cost - IP 2000 2,029,949.22 2,029,949.22 0.00
41 Cost - Lines 2,080,180.29 2,080,180.29 0.00
42 Total Collection Facilities 4,154,300.10 4,154,300.10 0.00
43 Office Equipment 32,004.40 32,004.40 0.00
44 Equipment 158,306.60 158,306.60 0.00
45 Land - Water 88,698.62 88,698.62 0.00
46 Land - Sewer 129,810.68 129,810.68 0.00
47 Sewer Project - 2011 2,792,451.91 2,792,451.91 0.00
48 Sewer Treatment Facilities
49 Cost - Equipment 14,492.40 8,069.38 6,423.02
50 Cost - Sewer Plant 488,193.00 488,193.00 0.00
51 Sewer Treatment Facilities - Other 4,500.00 4,500.00 0.00
52 Total Sewer Treatment Facilities 507,185.40 500,762.38 6,423.02
53 SWTP Office 19,740.96 19,740.96 0.00
54 Vehicles 90,378.67 48,023.52 42,355.15
55 Water Easements & Intangibles 177,397.11 177,397.11 0.00
56 MSR/SOI and Annexation Project 157,367.08 157,367.08 0.00

9



 9:57 AM
 02/21/17
 Accrual Basis

 Garberville Sanitary District
 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison

 As of January 31, 2017

Jan 31, 17 Jun 30, 16 $ Change
57 Water System 138,343.11 133,382.22 4,960.89
58 Accumulated Depreciation-Water (1,042,645.26) (836,152.26) (206,493.00)
59 Accumulated Depreciation-Sewer (1,571,103.06) (1,469,281.06) (101,822.00)
60 Total Fixed Assets 11,655,489.27 11,827,397.18 (171,907.91)
61 TOTAL ASSETS 12,573,796.23 12,801,829.97 (228,033.74)
62 LIABILITIES & EQUITY
63 Liabilities
64 Current Liabilities
65 Accounts Payable
66 2000 · Accounts Payable 59,263.31 25,026.74 34,236.57
67 Total Accounts Payable 59,263.31 25,026.74 34,236.57
68 Other Current Liabilities
69 2660 · Lease Payable - Ford Motor Cred 27,338.94 0.00 27,338.94
70 *Accounts Payable 6,085.92 0.00 6,085.92
71 2205 · Accrued Simple 0.00 1,437.87 (1,437.87)
72 2230 · Accrued Vacation 14,654.79 25,910.51 (11,255.72)
73 2250 · Loans Payable - Current Portion 115,634.01 115,634.01 0.00
74 Total Other Current Liabilities 163,713.66 142,982.39 20,731.27
75 Total Current Liabilities 222,976.97 168,009.13 54,967.84
76 Long Term Liabilities
77 2500 · N/P - SWRCB 168,855.28 191,123.20 (22,267.92)
78 2605 · RCAC Loan #6200-GSD-02 197,116.63 223,943.09 (26,826.46)
79 2655 · Lease Payable - Copier 2,912.67 3,438.07 (525.40)
80 2700 · SRF Loan - Water 1,333,488.64 1,356,479.82 (22,991.18)
81 2900 · Less Current Portion (115,634.01) (115,634.01) 0.00
82 Total Long Term Liabilities 1,586,739.21 1,659,350.17 (72,610.96)
83 Total Liabilities 1,809,716.18 1,827,359.30 (17,643.12)
84 Equity
85 3000 · Contributed Capital 6,129,491.75 6,129,491.75 0.00
86 3100 · Retained Earnings 4,842,018.92 5,105,728.46 (263,709.54)
87 3200 · Prior Period Adjustment 2,960.00 2,960.00 0.00
88 Net Income (210,390.62) (263,709.54) 53,318.92
89 Total Equity 10,764,080.05 10,974,470.67 (210,390.62)
90 TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 12,573,796.23 12,801,829.97 (228,033.74)

10



 Garberville Sanitary District
 Statement of Revenue and Expense

 For the One and Seventh Months Ended Jan 31, 2017

Total Water Total Sewer
Jan 17 Jul '16 - Jan 17 Jan 17 Jul '16 - Jan 17

1 Ordinary Income/Expense
2 Income
3 Water Charges
4 4100 · Residential 18,677.76 173,309.63 0.00 0.00
5 4110 · Commercial 16,906.38 127,351.65 0.00 0.00
6 Total Water Charges 35,584.14 300,661.28 0.00 0.00
7 4200 · Sewer Charges 0.00 0.00 29,397.18 214,051.59
8 4650 · Late Charges 170.00 1,769.52 170.00 1,769.52
9 4700 · Other Operating Revenue 130.00 1,420.51 5.00 110.50

10 Total Income 35,884.14 303,851.31 29,572.18 215,931.61
11 Gross Profit 35,884.14 303,851.31 29,572.18 215,931.61
12 Expense
13 Administrative and General
14 5000 · Advertising 135.00 135.00 135.00 135.00
15 5010 · Bank Charges
16 5012 · Merchant Account F 76.74 451.51 76.74 451.56
17 5010 · Bank Charges - Othe 0.00 383.63 0.00 383.63
18 Total 5010 · Bank Charges 76.74 835.14 76.74 835.19
19 5020 · Directors Fees 0.00 662.50 0.00 662.50
20 5030 · Dues and Memberships 90.00 1,556.06 90.00 1,556.06
21 5035 · Education and Training 0.00 328.49 0.00 1,039.58
22 Insurance
23 5040 · Liability 674.70 4,572.43 674.68 4,572.32
24 5050 · Workers' Comp 545.31 3,957.94 319.79 3,179.59
25 5055 · Health
26 5055.1 · Employee Port (680.54) (4,312.52) (492.46) (3,898.48)
27 5055 · Health - Other 1,782.96 13,378.08 1,782.96 13,378.05
28 Total 5055 · Health 1,102.42 9,065.56 1,290.50 9,479.57
29 Total Insurance 2,322.43 17,595.93 2,284.97 17,231.48
30 5060 · Licenses, Permits, and Fe 210.00 2,571.99 1,418.08 10,487.16
31 5065 · Auto 630.27 7,054.59 630.26 7,054.57
32 5070 · Miscellaneous 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50
33 5080 · Office Expense 319.37 1,786.66 319.36 1,786.68
34 5085 · Outside Services 164.50 2,507.92 224.23 2,324.70
35 5090 · Payroll Taxes 1,904.01 8,116.46 1,126.59 6,284.82
36 5100 · Postage 145.00 768.61 144.99 768.62
37 5110 · Professional Fees 1,101.81 14,004.07 1,101.81 10,240.89
38 5120 · Property Taxes 0.00 12.00 0.00 0.00
39 5125 · Repairs and Maintenanc 0.00 3.02 0.00 3.01
40 5130 · Rents 417.50 2,922.50 417.50 2,922.50
41 5135 · Retirement 402.40 2,795.90 229.76 2,233.16
42 5137 · Supplies 69.12 95.29 69.12 95.29
43 5140 · Telephone 91.98 793.72 91.97 793.77
44 5145 · Tools 140.05 2,748.15 215.44 1,884.83
45 5150 · Travel and Meetings 0.00 366.75 0.00 357.44
46 5155 · Utilities 111.87 689.09 111.85 689.11
47 5160 · Wages
48 5165 · Wages - Overtime 14.25 42.75 14.25 42.75
49 5160 · Wages - Other 5,884.46 44,353.73 4,837.63 40,152.67
50 Total 5160 · Wages 5,898.71 44,396.48 4,851.88 40,195.42
51 Total Administrative and General 14,233.26 112,748.82 13,542.05 109,584.28
52 Sewage Collection
53 6010 · Fuel 0.00 0.00 370.93 1,531.30
54 6030 · Repairs and Maintenanc 0.00 0.00 80.99 31,313.8211



 Garberville Sanitary District
 Statement of Revenue and Expense

 For the One and Seventh Months Ended Jan 31, 2017

Total Water Total Sewer
Jan 17 Jul '16 - Jan 17 Jan 17 Jul '16 - Jan 17

55 6040 · Supplies 0.00 0.00 62.54 1,044.09
56 6050 · Utilities 0.00 0.00 409.58 2,887.22
57 6060 · Wages
58 6065 · Wages - Overtime Se  0.00 0.00 145.50 2,178.00
59 6060 · Wages - Other 0.00 0.00 1,840.91 12,396.91
60 Total 6060 · Wages 0.00 0.00 1,986.41 14,574.91
61 Total Sewage Collection 0.00 0.00 2,910.45 51,351.34
62 Sewage Treatment
63 6075 · Fuel 0.00 0.00 370.93 1,531.30
64 6080 · Monitoring 0.00 0.00 457.50 2,746.67
65 6100 · Repairs and Maintenanc 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,062.39
66 6110 · Supplies 0.00 0.00 32.02 4,645.75
67 6120 · Utilities 0.00 0.00 1,052.15 5,988.22
68 6130 · Wages
69 6135 · Wages - Overtime Se  0.00 0.00 63.00 189.00
70 6130 · Wages - Other 0.00 0.00 1,435.69 14,887.69
71 Total 6130 · Wages 0.00 0.00 1,498.69 15,076.69
72 Total Sewage Treatment 0.00 0.00 3,411.29 36,051.02
73 Water Trans and Distribution
74 7075 · Fuel 370.93 1,531.27 0.00 0.00
75 7090 · Repairs and Maintenanc 249.83 5,468.54 0.00 0.00
76 7100 · Supplies 70.75 1,803.03 0.00 0.00
77 7110 · Utilities 626.87 5,478.01 0.00 0.00
78 7120 · Wages
79 7125 · Wages - Overtime W   837.25 3,482.50 0.00 0.00
80 7120 · Wages - Other 2,915.01 17,771.51 0.00 0.00
81 Total 7120 · Wages 3,752.26 21,254.01 0.00 0.00
82 Total Water Trans and Distribution 5,070.64 35,534.86 0.00 0.00
83 Water Treatment
84 7020 · Fuel 371.00 1,531.27 0.00 0.00
85 7010 · Monitoring 1,099.56 4,152.26 0.00 0.00
86 7030 · Repairs and Maintenanc 522.50 7,174.46 0.00 0.00
87 7040 · Supplies 68.53 6,704.21 0.00 0.00
88 7050 · Utilities 2,669.50 23,809.86 0.00 0.00
89 7060 · Wages
90 7065 · Wages - Overtime W  888.00 2,314.50 0.00 0.00
91 7060 · Wages - Other 3,677.05 21,192.55 0.00 0.00
92 Total 7060 · Wages 4,565.05 23,507.05 0.00 0.00
93 Total Water Treatment 9,296.14 66,879.11 0.00 0.00
94 Total Expense 28,600.04 215,162.79 19,863.79 196,986.64
95 Net Ordinary Income 7,284.10 88,688.52 9,708.39 18,944.97
96 Other Income/Expense
97 Other Income
98 8060 · Interest Income 36.32 248.17 23.80 159.68
99 Total Other Income 36.32 248.17 23.80 159.68

100 Other Expense
101 9040 · Depreciation 29,499.00 206,493.00 14,546.00 101,822.00
102 9050 · Interest Expense 844.67 6,246.58 7.18 3,870.38
103 Total Other Expense 30,343.67 212,739.58 14,553.18 105,692.38
104 Net Other Income (30,307.35) (212,491.41) ######### (105,532.70)
105 Net Income (23,023.25) (123,802.89) (4,820.99) (86,587.73)

12



 Garberville Sanitary District
 Statement of Revenue and Expense

 For the One and Seventh Months Ended Jan 31, 2017

 

1 Ordinary Income/Expense
2 Income
3 Water Charges
4 4100 · Residential
5 4110 · Commercial
6 Total Water Charges
7 4200 · Sewer Charges
8 4650 · Late Charges
9 4700 · Other Operating Revenue

10 Total Income
11 Gross Profit
12 Expense
13 Administrative and General
14 5000 · Advertising
15 5010 · Bank Charges
16 5012 · Merchant Account F
17 5010 · Bank Charges - Othe
18 Total 5010 · Bank Charges
19 5020 · Directors Fees
20 5030 · Dues and Memberships
21 5035 · Education and Training
22 Insurance
23 5040 · Liability
24 5050 · Workers' Comp
25 5055 · Health
26 5055.1 · Employee Port
27 5055 · Health - Other
28 Total 5055 · Health
29 Total Insurance
30 5060 · Licenses, Permits, and Fe
31 5065 · Auto
32 5070 · Miscellaneous
33 5080 · Office Expense
34 5085 · Outside Services
35 5090 · Payroll Taxes
36 5100 · Postage
37 5110 · Professional Fees
38 5120 · Property Taxes
39 5125 · Repairs and Maintenanc
40 5130 · Rents
41 5135 · Retirement
42 5137 · Supplies
43 5140 · Telephone
44 5145 · Tools
45 5150 · Travel and Meetings
46 5155 · Utilities
47 5160 · Wages
48 5165 · Wages - Overtime
49 5160 · Wages - Other
50 Total 5160 · Wages
51 Total Administrative and General
52 Sewage Collection
53 6010 · Fuel
54 6030 · Repairs and Maintenanc

TOTAL
Jan 17 Jul '16 - Jan 17

18,677.76 173,309.63
16,906.38 127,351.65
35,584.14 300,661.28
29,397.18 214,051.59

340.00 3,539.04
135.00 1,531.01

65,456.32 519,782.92
65,456.32 519,782.92

270.00 270.00

153.48 903.07
0.00 767.26

153.48 1,670.33
0.00 1,325.00

180.00 3,112.12
0.00 1,368.07

1,349.38 9,144.75
865.10 7,137.53

(1,173.00) (8,211.00)
3,565.92 26,756.13
2,392.92 18,545.13
4,607.40 34,827.41
1,628.08 13,059.15
1,260.53 14,109.16

5.00 5.00
638.73 3,573.34
388.73 4,832.62

3,030.60 14,401.28
289.99 1,537.23

2,203.62 24,244.96
0.00 12.00
0.00 6.03

835.00 5,845.00
632.16 5,029.06
138.24 190.58
183.95 1,587.49
355.49 4,632.98

0.00 724.19
223.72 1,378.20

28.50 85.50
10,722.09 84,506.40
10,750.59 84,591.90
27,775.31 222,333.10

370.93 1,531.30
80.99 31,313.8213



 Garberville Sanitary District
 Statement of Revenue and Expense

 For the One and Seventh Months Ended Jan 31, 2017

 

 55 6040 · Supplies
56 6050 · Utilities
57 6060 · Wages
58 6065 · Wages - Overtime Se  
59 6060 · Wages - Other
60 Total 6060 · Wages
61 Total Sewage Collection
62 Sewage Treatment
63 6075 · Fuel
64 6080 · Monitoring
65 6100 · Repairs and Maintenanc
66 6110 · Supplies
67 6120 · Utilities
68 6130 · Wages
69 6135 · Wages - Overtime Se  
70 6130 · Wages - Other
71 Total 6130 · Wages
72 Total Sewage Treatment
73 Water Trans and Distribution
74 7075 · Fuel
75 7090 · Repairs and Maintenanc
76 7100 · Supplies
77 7110 · Utilities
78 7120 · Wages
79 7125 · Wages - Overtime W   
80 7120 · Wages - Other
81 Total 7120 · Wages
82 Total Water Trans and Distribution
83 Water Treatment
84 7020 · Fuel
85 7010 · Monitoring
86 7030 · Repairs and Maintenanc
87 7040 · Supplies
88 7050 · Utilities
89 7060 · Wages
90 7065 · Wages - Overtime W  
91 7060 · Wages - Other
92 Total 7060 · Wages
93 Total Water Treatment
94 Total Expense
95 Net Ordinary Income
96 Other Income/Expense
97 Other Income
98 8060 · Interest Income
99 Total Other Income

100 Other Expense
101 9040 · Depreciation
102 9050 · Interest Expense
103 Total Other Expense
104 Net Other Income
105 Net Income

TOTAL
Jan 17 Jul '16 - Jan 17

62.54 1,044.09
409.58 2,887.22

145.50 2,178.00
1,840.91 12,396.91
1,986.41 14,574.91
2,910.45 51,351.34

370.93 1,531.30
457.50 2,746.67

0.00 6,062.39
32.02 4,645.75

1,052.15 5,988.22

63.00 189.00
1,435.69 14,887.69
1,498.69 15,076.69
3,411.29 36,051.02

370.93 1,531.27
249.83 5,468.54

70.75 1,803.03
626.87 5,478.01

837.25 3,482.50
2,915.01 17,771.51
3,752.26 21,254.01
5,070.64 35,534.86

371.00 1,531.27
1,099.56 4,152.26

522.50 7,174.46
68.53 6,704.21

2,669.50 23,809.86

888.00 2,314.50
3,677.05 21,192.55
4,565.05 23,507.05
9,296.14 66,879.11

48,463.83 412,149.43
16,992.49 107,633.49

60.12 407.85
60.12 407.85

44,045.00 308,315.00
851.85 10,116.96

44,896.85 318,431.96
(44,836.73) (318,024.11)
(27,844.24) (210,390.62)

14



15



                      Garberville Sanitary District 
                                             PO Box 211 
                                         919 Redwood dr. 
                                    Garberville, CA. 95542 
                     Office(707)923-9566   Fax(707)923-3130 
                              

 
Southern Humboldt Community Healthcare District, 
733 Cedar St. Garberville CA. 95542 
Attn: Matt Rees 
 
I was made aware of the intent to install a CT unit on the empty lot adjoining the hospital which 
will require a water and sewer connection. The GSD ordinance is clear about past service 
charges being paid prior to new service of property or pay a new connection fee for water and 
sewer. Currently the Sewer fee is $8,000 and the water fee is $8,000.   
 
 In an effort to work with the hospital we also have an ordinance which allows for abandonment 
or approved discontinuance of service annual fee of $500 that will keep a service active without 
having to pay monthly service charges or new connection fees.  
  Upon review and in an effort to comply with GSD ordinances, we propose you pay the 5 years 
of annual discontinuance of service fees, which equals $2,500 and I will waive the new 
connection fees of $16,000 
 
 
Sec 10.9 Annual Fee for Discontinuance of Service.  Any person requesting discontinuance of 
service will pay an annual fee of $500 to keep service active and not be charged a re-connection 
fee when service continues.  A new connection fee will be required before service is reinstated if 
discontinuance exceeds two years. 

a. Any person requesting discontinued service is required to fill out the District 
discontinued service application and be responsible for any associated costs, 
including service charges and associated fees along with a nonrefundable $500 
discontinued service fee. 

b. When a discontinued service wants reconnection and has not paid the annual $500 
inactive service fee, they will be required to pay current connection fees prior to 
service. 

c. An extension beyond two years will only be granted if approved by the General 
Manager or designee. 

 
Please contact me for clarification or further information, 
 
Ralph Emerson 
 
General Manager 
Garberville Sanitary District 
  
 
cc: Kent Scown                                                              

16



17



18



19



20



                      Garberville Sanitary District 
                                             PO Box 211 
                                         919 Redwood dr. 
                                    Garberville, CA. 95542 
                     Office(707)923-9566   Fax(707)923-3130 
                               remerson@garbervillesd.org 

 
 
 
Garberville Town Square Restroom                                                           February 21, 2017 
Humboldt County Planning Department 
 
 We have received a proposal and site plan for the proposed town square restroom and grease 
interceptor. 
 
The requirements and comments from Garberville Sanitary District are included. 
 

1. A clean out will be required for access and cleaning 
2. A manhole will be required at the connection into the existing sewer collection line. 
3. There was no discussion when connection fees were addressed which included a grease 

interceptor for food trucks and if there is to be a food truck grease interceptor, it will have 
to be inspected by GSD staff to determine what connection fee should be charged and 
how water will be provided.  

4. Any improvements to allow for the construction of a restroom and grease interceptor for 
a food truck will be paid by the owner or responsible party along with any applicable 
connection fees. 

5. Garberville Sanitary District will not make final water and sewer connections until all 
required improvements are made and connection fees paid. 

 
 
 
Ralph Emerson 
 
General Manager 
Garberville Sanitary District 
                                                               

21

mailto:remerson@garbervillesd.org


22



23



24



25



26



                      Garberville Sanitary District 
                                             PO Box 211 
                                         919 Redwood Dr. 
                                    Garberville, CA. 95542 
                     Office (707)923-9566   Fax (707)923-3130 
 

 
 
 

BOARD COMMITTEES 
 
 

PERSONNEL HEARING COMMITTEE 
1. Board Member___________________________ 
2. Board Member___________________________ 

 
BUDGET COMMITTEE 

1. Board Member___________________________ 
2. Board Member___________________________ 

 
RATE STUDY COMMITTEE 

1. Board Member___________________________ 
2. Board Member___________________________ 

 
JOINT DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE 

1. Board Member___________________________ 
2. Board Member___________________________ 

 
 

                                
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



 

STAFF REPORT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

February 28, 2017        TYPE OF ITEM:  ACTION 

ITEM:  B.6 Consider Approval of Resolution 17-005 to Reschedule 
Election of Governing Board Members in Compliance 
with Senate Bill 415 to Consolidate with Statewide 
Election Dates 

PRESENTED BY:  Ralph Emerson, General Manager 

TYPE OF ACTION:  Roll Call Vote 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution 17-005 consolidating the 
election for governing Board Members with Statewide General Elections and 
approving rescheduling of elections from odd to even numbered years 
commencing with the November, 2017 election. 

Discussion: 
On September 1, 2015, Governor Jerry Brown signed Senate Bill No. 415 (SB 
415), Attachment 1, Voter Participation, into law adding sections 14050–14057 
to the California Elections Code.  

The public policy behind SB 415 was to address waning civic engagement in 
politics as illustrated by declining voter turnout in federal, state and municipal 
elections. A major contributing factor to low voter turnout, the timing of elections, 
could be addressed by synchronizing city/town elections with even-year state 
elections.  

Garberville Sanitary District (Garberville SD) is obligated to conduct general and 
special elections in accordance with the Sanitary District Act and the Uniform 
District Election Law. The District currently holds general elections in November 
of odd-numbered years for five (5) Members of the Board (staggered terms), with 
each member serving a term of four (4) years. The Sanitary District Act 
specifically states that elections are to be held in odd-numbered years (Health 
and Safety Code section 6482), but where applicable SB 415 prohibits elections 
in odd-numbered years. Thus, the laws are in conflict, and it must be presumed 

51



 

 Page 2 of 2 

that the legislature intended the new law (SB 415) to take precedence over the 
old Sanitary District law requiring odd-numbered year elections. 

SB 415 prohibits a local government from holding an election other than on a 
statewide election date if holding an election on a nonconcurrent date (i.e. 
election date other than November of even numbered years), has previously 
resulted in significant decrease in voter turnout. A “significant decrease in voter 
turnout” is defined as voter turnout for a regularly scheduled election that is at 
least twenty-five percent (25%) less than the average voter turnout within that 
town for the previous four (4) statewide general elections.  

Elections Code Section 10404(i) limits increases or decreases to terms of office 
to an extension up to but not beyond December 31 of the following year 
(essentially, twelve months). Pushing out the election from 2017 to 2018 and in 
turn, 2019 to 2020, would comply with the above stated Election Code. In order 
to reschedule the 2017 election to 2018, the Humboldt County Board of 
Supervisors must receive a Resolution by the Board no later than March 10, 
2017. 

Another potential alternative under SB 415 is to conduct the Election in 
November 2017, but the Board must adopt a plan on or before January 1, 2018, 
for the future extension or reduction of all Board Member terms to get on an even 
number election cycle.  

Alternatives: 
Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative 

• Take No Action 

Fiscal Analysis:  
Potential savings to the District over time due to consolidation with Statewide 
general election and reduction in ballot preparation costs. 

One-time expense to the District for Humboldt County Elections office to mail 
notification of approval of change of the election date to voters/District 
constituents, if approved by the Humboldt County Board of Supervisors. 

Environmental Requirements:  
Not applicable 

Exhibits/Attachments:  
• Attachment 1 – Senate Bill 415 
• Attachment 2 – Resolution 17-005 

52



Senate Bill No. 415

CHAPTER 235

An act to add Chapter 1.7 (commencing with Section 14050) to Division
14 of the Elections Code, relating to elections.

[Approved by Governor September 1, 2015. Filed with
Secretary of State September 1, 2015.]

legislative counsel’s digest

SB 415, Hueso. Voter participation.
Existing law generally requires all state, county, municipal, district, and

school district elections be held on an established election date. Existing
law also establishes certain dates for statewide elections. Existing law
requires any state, county, municipal, district, and school district election
held on a statewide election date to be consolidated with a statewide election,
except as provided.

This bill, commencing January 1, 2018, would prohibit a political
subdivision, as defined, from holding an election other than on a statewide
election date if holding an election on a nonconcurrent date has previously
resulted in voter turnout for a regularly scheduled election in that political
subdivision being at least 25% less than the average voter turnout within
the political subdivision for the previous 4 statewide general elections,
except as specified.

This bill would require a court to implement appropriate remedies upon
a violation of this prohibition. The bill would authorize a voter who resides
in a political subdivision where a violation is alleged to file an action in
superior court to enforce this prohibition, and it would allow a prevailing
plaintiff other than the state or political subdivision to collect a reasonable
attorney’s fee and litigation expenses, as provided.

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. Chapter 1.7 (commencing with Section 14050) is added
to Division 14 of the Elections Code, to read:

Chapter  1.7.  Voter Participation

14050. This chapter shall be known and may be cited as the California
Voter Participation Rights Act.

14051. As used in this chapter:
(a)  “Political subdivision” means a geographic area of representation

created for the provision of government services, including, but not limited

 

93  

53



to, a city, a school district, a community college district, or other district
organized pursuant to state law.

(b)  “Significant decrease in voter turnout” means the voter turnout for a
regularly scheduled election in a political subdivision is at least 25 percent
less than the average voter turnout within that political subdivision for the
previous four statewide general elections.

(c)  “Voter turnout” means the percentage of voters who are eligible to
cast ballots within a given political subdivision who voted.

14052. (a)  Except as provided in subdivision (b), a political subdivision
shall not hold an election other than on a statewide election date if holding
an election on a nonconcurrent date has previously resulted in a significant
decrease in voter turnout.

(b)  A political subdivision may hold an election other than on a statewide
election date if, by January 1, 2018, the political subdivision has adopted a
plan to consolidate a future election with a statewide election not later than
the November 8, 2022, statewide general election.

14053. Upon a finding of a violation of subdivision (a) of Section 14052,
the court shall implement appropriate remedies, including the imposition
of concurrent election dates for future elections and the upgrade of voting
equipment or systems to do so. In imposing remedies pursuant to this section,
a court may also require a county board of supervisors to approve
consolidation pursuant to Section 10402.5.

14054. In an action to enforce subdivision (a) of Section 14052, the
court shall allow the prevailing plaintiff other than the state or political
subdivision of the state, a reasonable attorney’s fee consistent with the
standards established in Serrano v. Priest (1977) 20 Cal.3d 25, 48-49, and
litigation expenses including, but not limited to, expert witness fees and
expenses as part of the costs. A prevailing defendant shall not recover any
costs, unless the court finds the action to be frivolous, unreasonable, or
without foundation.

14055. A voter who resides in a political subdivision where a violation
of subdivision (a) of Section 14052 is alleged may file an action pursuant
to that section in the superior court of the county in which the political
subdivision is located.

14056. This chapter does not apply to special elections.
14057. This chapter shall become operative on January 1, 2018.

O

93

— 2 —Ch. 235

 

54



Resolution 17-005   

RESOLUTION NO. 17-005 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS TO RESCHEDULE ELECTION OF GOVERNING BOARD 
MEMBERS 

 
 

 
A. WHEREAS, the Garberville Sanitary District (“District”) is a Sanitary District organized 

pursuant to the Sanitary District Act of 1923, codified at Health and Safety Code section 
6400 et seq and operating entirely within the County of Humboldt; and 

 
B. WHEREAS, California Senate Bill 415, an act (which may be cited to as the California 

Voter Participation Rights Act (herein “the Act”)) to add Chapter 1.7 (commencing with 
Section 14050) to Division 14 of the Elections Code, was approved by the California 
Governor and filed with the Secretary of State on September 1, 2015; and 

 
C. WHEREAS, commencing January 1, 2018, the Act prohibits a political subdivision from 

holding an election other than on a statewide election date (i.e. “off-cycle”) if holding an 
election on a non-concurrent date has previously resulted in voter turnout for a regularly 
scheduled election in the political subdivision being at least 25% less than the average 
voter turnout within the political subdivision for the previous four statewide general 
elections; and  

 
D. WHEREAS, the current date for election of members of the Board of Directors of the 

District is every two (2) years on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of 
odd-numbered years (e.g. November 2017 and 2019); and  

 
E. WHEREAS, statewide general elections are held in California only in June and 

November of even-numbered years (e.g. next election June and November 2018) 
(Elections Code section 1001); and 
 

F. WHEREAS, generally voter turnout is greater for statewide general elections than for 
local elections, including special district board member elections held in November of 
odd-numbered years; and 

 
G. WHEREAS, the Board wishes to increase voter participation in elections for Board 

members; and 
 

H. WHEREAS, the District may achieve a savings in the cost of its elections, if the District’s 
elections are consolidated with the statewide general elections; and 

 
I. WHEREAS, as a result of these facts, the Board desires to change the date of future 

board member elections to be consolidated with the California statewide general election 

55



Resolution 17-005   
 

in order to save public funds and provide greater voter input into school board elections; 
and 

 
J. WHEREAS, under section 6482 of the Health and Safety Code, the term of office for 

board members is four years; and 
 

K. WHEREAS, under section 6560 of the Health and Safety Code, election of board 
members is determined pursuant to the Uniform District Elections Law (Elections Code 
section 10500 et seq.); and 

 
L. WHEREAS, the District is authorized by section 10404 of the Elections Code to adopt a 

resolution requiring that its Board-member elections be held on the same day as the 
statewide general elections; and  
 

M. WHEREAS, the Act is mandatory where applicable to ensure voter participation; and  
 

N. WHEREAS, if the change in election date is approved, it is requested that the new 
election date be moved from the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November 2017 
to the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November 2018 with board members whose 
terms would have expired in 2017 being extended to 2018 and board members whose 
terms would have expired in 2019 being extended to 2020, as required by Elections 
Code section 10404(i).  

 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Garberville Sanitary District 
does hereby find, determine and/or declare, as follows: 
  
 1. Each of the foregoing is true and correct. 
 
 2. The Board of Directors declares its intent to adopt this resolution to consolidate the 
election date for members of the Board with the date for the California general election in 
November in even-numbered years (Elections Code section 1001) pursuant to Elections Code 
section 10404(b). 
 
 3. The Board Secretary will forward this resolution to the Humboldt County Board of 
Supervisors explaining the rationale for the resolution and requesting formal approval of the 
change by the Board of Supervisors at a public meeting held within 60 days after submission 
and after the resolution has been posted in accordance with the law.  
 
 4. The Board Secretary will notify the Humboldt County Elections Office that the District 
is prepared to pay the expense of mailing notice of approval of the change in election date by 
the Humboldt County Board of Supervisors as required by Elections Code 10404(f). 
 
 5. If the consolidation of election is approved by the Board of Supervisors, the date of 
that election will be moved to the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November 2018 and 
each subsequent board member election will be held two years thereafter in November of even 
years.  
 
 
Passed and adopted by Garberville Sanitary District’s Board of Directors on February 28, 2017, 
by the following vote: 
 

56



Resolution 17-005   
 

AYES:  Directors        
 
NOES:  Directors        
 
EXCUSED: Directors        
 
 
 

    , Chairperson 
    Linda Brodersen 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     ,  
Ralph Emerson, General Manager 

57



 Garberville Sanitary District                                                            Classification Specifications 
   Established:  10/03/06  

   TITLE:                         DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR  
GENERAL MANAGER 
ESSENTIAL FUNCTION  

  
Under policy direction, serves as the chief executive officer responsible for supporting the service, 
financial and capital improvement planning activity of the governing board, executing actions to 
cause operations to adjust to enacted policy changes, directing the allocation of responsibility and 
staffing to departments and managing the scheduling of approved work programs in conformance 
with applicable statutes, regulations and policies.  

  
PRIMARY DUTIES  
  
Service Planning: Gather and accumulate information to describe federal, state and regional 
legislative policy trends in allocating responsibilities, resources, financing and regulation of water 
and wastewater delivery and processing systems. Direct the development and adoption of long term 
capital improvement plans, associated services, and financing strategies.  Identify industry trends; 
options and alternatives; recommend long term goals and short term objectives.  Direct the 
development and preparation of budget requests including the description and quantification of 
service activity and justification of funding requirements for services, personnel, and supplies, routine 
operating capital equipment and facilities, and special projects.  
 
Service Provided: It is expected that the General Manager be available as needed for all operational 
and District oversight which may include customer complaints, operational concerns, emergencies or 
staff disagreements. The General Manager although a salaried position is expected to perform a 
minimum of 40 hours per week work on behalf of the District unless approved by the Board President 
or Governing Board. 
  
District Operations:  Direct interagency coordination and response to emergency or disastrous events.  
Establish standards for procedures, systems, equipment, personnel and other means by which 
operations are conducted.  Direct the implementation of policy changes to services, funding levels, 
position allocations, operating policies, standards, procedures and rules.  Coordinate response to 
claims and litigation in consultation with district counsel and indemnity coverage.  Assure that all 
employment and safety, legal property records, titles and registrations, insurance and permit renewal 
actions are accomplished in conformance with federal, state, regional laws and regulations and 
District ordinances, policies and procedures.  
  
District Organization:  Recommend the allocation of operating responsibilities to major 
organizational components.  Assign responsibilities and duties to all positions; approve all 
assignment of internal departmental organization responsibilities and duties to departmental 
positions.  Justify the merits, necessity and organization of responsibility assignments and obtain 
governing board approval of organization structure.  Assure positions are funded and allocated in 
relation to the approved structure.  Initiate employment policy actions to fill all personnel positions.  
Select and hire all employees.  Direct training and formally evaluates employee performance.  Take 
formal commendation, discipline and discharge actions involving personnel.  
  

58



Work Program Management:  Present regular status reports and relevant recommendations on work 
program status to the governing board.  Monitor progress of planning, design and construction of 
approved capital improvement projects; operating and reporting status of regulatory compliance 
activities; cash management, budget and service contract performance levels; and status of general 
operations.  Direct the preparation of information and materials for presentation to the governing 
board, assure compliance with all public agency noticing requirements and applicable policies.  
Initiate action to cause proper records to be made and follow-up actions from governing board 
meetings to be accomplished.  
 Appendix B  1  

 Garberville Sanitary District  Classification Specifications  
   Established:  10/03/06  

Public and Staff Relations:  Respond to inquiries from the public, press, customers, local officials, 
outside agencies, community organizations, and industry counterparts.  Prepare or cause the 
preparation of analyses, reports, recommendations and position papers on water and wastewater 
matters pending before legislative or regulatory bodies.  Participate in the activities of professional 
water and wastewater organizations on behalf of the District.  Participate in District related 
committees, civic events and activities of community organizations.  Participate in governing board 
and staff social functions.  
  
Other Assigned Duties:  Perform other duties assigned by the governing board which are consistent 
with the responsibilities of the position and necessary to the operations of the District.  

 
  
Knowledge of the following is required to perform the essential function:   

Principles, practices, methods and technical support functions of special district services.  
Fundamental intent and basic provisions of federal, state and local financing mechanisms of special 

district.  
Specific application of federal, state and local legislative enactments applicable to special district 

utility operations.   
Techniques used for gathering, evaluating and summarizing special district service data and 

information in preparing budgets and supporting policy decision making processes.  
Personnel and operating practices as they apply to special district operations.   

  
Ability to do the following is required to perform the essential function:   

Interpret and apply the general intent and specific provisions of multiple laws and regulations and 
professional practices to specific issues.  

Develop and implement design and construction standards and operating policies and procedures 
for multiple functional programs and personnel.  

Provide verbal and written directives, information and advice to a wide variety of people and 
officials.  
Persuasively communicate ideas and assert a point of view in complex or controversial situations.  
Exhibit and instill in subordinates a high public service priority.  
Establish and maintain open and honest communications with co-workers at all levels of the 

organization.  
  

59



Qualifying Training and Experience:  
A combination of training and experience which demonstrates that a person has obtained the 
required knowledge and is able to perform the required work.  

  
Employment Conditions:  

Specifications Approved by Board of Directors.  
  
Fair Labor Standards Act Overtime:  

Exempt.  
  
Appointment and Removal Authority:  

Board of Directors.  
 

60



             Garberville Sanitary District                        
Job Description  

  
  
Job Title:  Operations Manager  
Reports To: Board of Directors  
Date: August 2012  
  

Job Duties and Responsibilities  
  

 The Operations Manager will supervise the Water Treatment and 
Distribution along with the Wastewater Treatment and Collections 
operators to coordinate all field activities necessary to effectively 
maintain and operate the District.   

 The Operations Manager will work with the Business Manager 
General Manager to assure District policies are implemented.   

 The Operations Manager will work with the Business Manager and Project 
General Manager to assist in the review of projects, designs, technical 
issues, and project management.  

 The Operations Manager shall schedule jobs, assign tasks, and 
coordinate all aspects of each operation ensuring safety, efficiency, cost-
effectiveness, and timely completion of projects or assignments.  

 The Operations Manager will be required to attend meetings during other 
than normal work hours. And may be called back to work before or after 
regularly scheduled work hours or on scheduled days off.  

 The Operations Manager shall complete annual performance evaluations 
on those employees he supervises. He/she shall make recommendations 
for hiring, firing, promotions, raises, and disciplinary action.  

 Commitment to teamwork among peers and subordinates.  

61



 The Operations Manager will be responsible for Field Staff and Operators 

 Responsible for all reports and compliance of permits and regulations 

 Promotes worker professionalism - Serve as a role model, mentor, and 
coach to ensure employees treat each other and the customers we serve 
with respect.  

 Maintains knowledge and ensures compliance with current employment 
laws and regulations.  

 Performs customer service tasks along with construction and 
maintenance work.  

 Assures that all necessary repairs and maintenance are scheduled and 
completed on vehicles and equipment  

 Oversees the work order system to assure proper record keeping is 
completed and filed.  

 Schedule and assigns daily work to the operation personnel.   
 Keeps the Business General Manager and Board of Directors informed of 

field operations and potential operational problems.  
 Assures the water storage facilities (tanks) are properly operated, 

maintained, and cleaned.  
 Assures the water distribution system (mains, valves, hydrants, and 

appurtenances) is properly operated, maintained, and cleaned.  
 Assures that the cross connection program is up to date and in 

accordance with State regulations.   
 Assures the wastewater facilities (pump stations and buildings) are 

properly operated, maintained, and cleaned.  
 Assures that mapping is maintained and up-to-date.  
 Assures that developer extensions of the water system are in accordance 

with the District approved plans and are inspected by District personnel.  
 Assures District contract improvements are inspected and completed as 

per plans and specifications.  
 Assures that customer complaints are responded to in a timely manner, 

investigated as necessary, and coordinated with 
the Office General Manager  Supervises the District safety program.  

62



Assure subordinate employee compliance with all District policies 

63



      SENIOR OPERATOR  

ESSENTIAL FUNCTION  
  

Under supervision, responsible for performing water and wastewater treatment processing and analysis 
work in conformance with regular procedures, approved treatment processing methods and regulatory 
prescribed techniques and verifying compliance with requirements and validating quality of completed 
work.  

  
PRIMARY DUTIES  
  
This position reports to the District Administrator Chief Plant Operator or General Manager and will 
direct and assist in the maintenance and operations of all district facilities.  Make routine purchases of 
materials through administration and maintain inventory of equipment. Coordinate with the Chief 
Plant Operator or General Manager and all Regulatory Agencies for the operations of District facilities.  
  
System Operation:  Identifies adjustments indicated by current conditions and variations to control and 
alter flow and/or treatment processes.  Operates direct and remote controls of manual and automatic 
equipment to start and stop pumps, engines, generators, valves and other equipment and devices which 
control and adjust power, water or wastewater conveyance, flow, treatment, discharge and bio-solids 
removal processes.  Controls the application of hazardous materials and chemicals such as chlorine.  
Records shift operating information on standard logs and checks lists.  Will provide on the job instruction 
and train field staff learning water or wastewater treatment operations.  
  
System Monitoring:  Reviews readings, logs and test results to determine current status of systems and 
plant processes.  Reads, records, interprets and monitors meters, gauges, control panels and laboratory 
tests results to assess system functions and determine processing requirements.  Extracts water and 
wastewater samples; prepares and maintains associated chain of custody and quality control records; 
transfers samples to laboratory and performs routine laboratory tests and analyses.  
  
Service and Facilities Maintenance:  Identifies and assists in diagnosing existing and potential repair 
requirements to plant, wells, pump stations, power generators and all related facilities and equipment.  
Performs routine scheduled preventive maintenance work and maintenance on equipment.  Prepares 
maintenance and repair service requests and suggests changes to preventive maintenance schedules and 
actions.  Establish or amend operational procedures and maintenance procedures to be approved by the 
District Administrator Chief Plant Operator or General Manager.  Assists external contractors and 
internal repair crews to locate, evaluate, adjust, maintain and/or replace equipment, systems and facilities.  
Maintains central and remote work places.  Performs maintenance work on facilities and grounds as 
needed.  Administers the hazard material safety program, performs monthly safety inspections.  Responds 
to service requests and complaints from service users.  Conducts field investigations and/or inspections of 
service conditions at user locations.  Takes actions needed to resolve service needs.  Prepares reports of 
service calls and complaints.  Responds to utility service alerts.  
  
General:  Participates in the general housekeeping and administrative record keeping operations of the 
operations section.  Prepares and presents monthly formal reports as required by the State, District or 
regulatory agencies, including cost proposals for major equipment purchases and recommendations as 
appropriate.  Maintain records required by all regulatory agencies, ordinances and policies. Assist 
the District Administrator Chief Plant Operator and General Manager in preparing the annual budget, and 

64



coordinate field operations with office operations.  Reports all emergencies with in the District 
operations of facilities to both the to the District Administrator Chief Plant Operator and General 
Manager and or the Board Chairperson if the General Manager is unavailable. 
  
Other Assigned Duties:  Perform other duties assigned by the District Administrator Chief Plant 
Operator  or General Manager which are consistent with the responsibilities of the position and 
necessary to the operations of the District  
  

1  
Knowledge of the following is required to perform the essential function:   

Current practices, equipment and procedures applied to water and wastewater conveyance and treatment 
systems in the State.  

Federal, State and local legal and regulatory provisions and related technical terminology applicable to 
water and wastewater treatment processes.  

Chemical and biological procedures and tests applied in water and wastewater treatment.  
Basic construction, assembly and operational norms of hydraulic equipment, power generators, pumps 

and controls.  
Safety practice procedures applicable to all aspects of treatment and conveyance systems operations; 

procedures for using protective gear; and specific procedure applicable in handling and using 
hazardous materials and chemicals.   

  
Ability to do the following is required to perform the essential function:   

Extract water and wastewater samples and perform standard laboratory tests.  
Observe, interpret and record measurements indicated on gauges, meters and similar measuring devices.  
Perform maintenance on water and wastewater equipment and facilities.  
Understand, retain and apply written procedures.  
Understand and explain specific provisions and procedures contained in technical manuals, drawings, 

specifications, blueprints, layouts and schematics.  
Exhibit a high customer service priority.  
Establish and maintain open and honest communications with co-workers at all levels of the 
organization.  
Instruct others in specific processes and procedures applied in treatment and equipment operations.  
Operate vehicles, office computers and field communications equipment.  
Operate water and wastewater equipment and process controls.  
Tolerate physical presence of height.  
Ascend and descend ladders and stairs.  
Within CALOSHA guidelines, withstand periods of physical exposure to the presence of fumes, odors, 

dust and pollen without incapacitating adverse effect.  
Safely enter and leave confined spaces.  
Safely transport and lift bulky objects.  

  
Basic Qualifications:  Must possess proper certification for operating the Water Treatment Plant and  
Wastewater Treatment Plant.  At least three (3) years experience in the operation and maintenance of 
Water and Wastewater systems.  Computer skills, ability to use word processing, spread sheets, and data 
processing is required.  
  

65



Employment Requirements: A valid California State Class C license must be maintained at all times.  
Pass physical examination and illegal drug screen.  Maintain telephone service and reside within 30 
minutes response time to GSD.  Be available to assist “on call” operator after normal scheduled work 
hours as needed.  
  
Qualifying Training and Experience:  

A combination of training and experience which demonstrates that a person has obtained the required 
knowledge and is able to perform the required work.  

  
Employment Conditions:  

Specifications Approved by Board of Directors General Manager.  
  
Fair Labor Standards Act Overtime:  

Non-Exempt, receives overtime compensation.  
  
Appointment and Removal Authority:  

District Administrator General Manager 

 

66



Garberville Sanitary District  Classification Specifications  
  Established:  10/03/06  
  
  
TITLE:  
  

Appendix B  

                                       WATER-WASTEWATER OPERATOR I  

ESSENTIAL FUNCTION  
  

Under direct supervision, responsible for performing water and wastewater treatment processing work duties in 
conformance with routine processes, treatment methods and in conformance with regulations and standard work 
and safety techniques.  
  
PRIMARY DUTIES  
  
This is an entry level technical water and wastewater treatment classification.  This position reports to the Chief 
Operator or General Manager.  
  
System Operations:  Reviews readings, logs and test results to determine current status of systems and plant 
processes.  Reads, records, interprets and monitors meters, gauges, control panels and laboratory test results to 
assess system functions and determine processing requirements.  Operates direct and remote controls of manual 
and automatic equipment to start and stop pumps, engines, generators, valves and other equipment and devices 
which control and adjust power, water or wastewater conveyance, flow, treatment, discharge and biosolids 
removal processes.  Extracts water and/or wastewater samples; prepares State required reports and maintains 
associated control records; transfer samples to laboratory and performs routine laboratory tests and analyses.  
Assists in applying chemicals to treatment processes.  
  
Facilities Maintenance:  Identifies and assists in diagnosing existing and potential repair requirements to plant, 
wells, pump stations, power generators and all related facilities and equipment.  Performs routine scheduled 
preventive maintenance work and maintenance on equipment.  Prepares maintenance and repair service 
requests.  Assists external contractors and internal repair crews to locate, evaluate, adjust, maintain and/or 
replace equipment, systems and facilities.  Maintains central and remote work places.  Performs maintenance 
work on facilities and grounds as needed.  Responds to customer service calls. Assists in conducting field 
investigations and/or inspections of service conditions at user locations.  Takes actions needed to resolve 
service needs.  Prepares reports of service calls and complaints.  Responds to utility service alerts.  Assists in 
housekeeping maintenance of work places.  
  
General:  Participates in the general housekeeping and administrative record keeping, meter reading and 
assigned tasks by the Chief Operator or General Manager. operations of the operations section.  Prepares and 
presents formal reports and recommendations as appropriate.  Inform if new or additional equipment is needed 
and maintain an inventory of equipment.  Perform daily laboratory test and data entries on plant performance 
and equipment logs. Reports all emergencies with the operations of facilities to the Chief Operator.  
  
Other Assigned Duties:  Perform other duties assigned which are consistent with the responsibilities of 
the position and necessary to the operations of the District.  
  

 
  
Knowledge of the following is required to perform the essential function:   

67



Garberville Sanitary District  Classification Specifications  
  Established:  10/03/06  
  
  
TITLE:  
  

Appendix B  

Current practices, equipment and procedures applied to water and wastewater conveyance and treatment 
systems in the State.  

Federal, State and local legal and regulatory provisions and related technical terminology applicable to water 
and wastewater treatment processes.  

Chemical and biological procedures and tests applied in water and wastewater treatment.  
Basic construction, assembly and operational norms of hydraulic equipment, power generators, pumps and 

controls.  

5  
Safety practice procedures applicable to all aspects of treatment and conveyance systems operations; 

procedures for using protective gear; and specific procedure applicable in handling and using hazardous 
materials and chemicals.   

  
Ability to do the following is required to perform the essential function:   

Extract water and wastewater samples and perform standard laboratory tests.  
Observe, interpret and record measurements indicated on gauges, meters and similar measuring devices.  
Perform maintenance on water and wastewater equipment and facilities.  
Understand, retain and apply written procedures.  
Understand and explain specific provisions and procedures contained in technical manuals, drawings, 

specifications, blueprints, layouts and schematics.  
Exhibit a high customer service priority.  
Establish and maintain open and honest communications with co-workers at all levels of the organization.  
Instruct others in specific processes and procedures applied in treatment and equipment operations.  
Operate vehicles, office computers and field communications equipment.  
Operate water and wastewater equipment and process controls.  
Tolerate physical presence of height.  
Ascend and descend ladders and stairs.  
Within CALOSHA guidelines, withstand periods of physical exposure to the presence of fumes, odors, dust 

and pollen without incapacitating adverse effect.  
Safely enter and leave confined spaces.  
Safely transport and lift bulky objects.  

  
Basic Qualifications:  Must possess a Grade I  II certification for operating a Water Treatment facility.  At least 
two (2) years experience in the operation and maintenance of Water Treatment systems.  Must obtain Grade II 
Water Treatment certificate within one (1)  year and Must Possess a Grade I Wastewater Treatment 
certificate in three (3) years.  Computer skills, ability to use word processing, spread sheets, and data processing 
is desirable. If approved by the General Manager or designee, water or wastewater certificates may be obtained 
within one year after employment. 
  
Employment Requirements: A valid California State Class C license must be maintained at all times.  Pass 
physical examination and illegal drug screen.  Maintain telephone service and reside within 30 minutes 
response time to GSD.  Be available to assist “on call” operator after normal scheduled work hours as needed.  
Participate in the Safety Program and be physically able to use safety equipment.  
  

68



Garberville Sanitary District  Classification Specifications  
  Established:  10/03/06  
  
  
TITLE:  
  

Appendix B  

Qualifying Training and Experience:  
A combination of training and experience which demonstrates that a person has obtained the required 
knowledge and is able to perform the required work.  

  
Employment Conditions:  

Specifications Approved by Board of Directors the General Manager.  
  
Fair Labor Standards Act Overtime:  

Non-Exempt, receives overtime compensation.  
  
Appointment and Removal Authority:  

District Administrator. General Manager 

6  

69



Garberville Sanitary District  Classification Specifications  
  Established:  10/03/06  
  
  
TITLE:  
  

Appendix B  

 

70



Sec 4.9 Service Connection.  It shall be unlawful to maintain a connection excepting in 
conformity with the following rules: 
 

a. Each building under separate ownership must be provided with a separate service 
connection and meter.  Two or more buildings under same ownership and on the same lot 
or parcel may be supplied through the same service connection and meter if authorized by 
the General Manager or GSD Board. 

 
b. Multiple service connections for a single parcel with single owner are allowed under 

these conditions:  
 

1. A master meter is installed at the property line 
2. Metered service connections are provided for each sub unit or single 

family residence. Meters and valves will be supplied and remain property of 
GSD. 

3. Supply line from master meter to each of the units shall be installed and 
maintained by owner. 

4. Owner will be responsible for usage on master meter, determined by deducting 
each sub unit from master meter. 

5. Owner will be responsible for notifying the District of any changes to property or 
buildings at such time the General Manager or designee will inspect property for 
compliance of District service connection ordinances. 

6. Failure to notify the District when making improvements to the property or 
buildings may result in inspections costs and reimbursement of staff time, meters 
and construction expenses along with applicable connection fees. 

 
c. Different Owner.  A service connection shall not be used to supply adjoining property of 

a different owner or to supply property of the same owner across a street or alley. 
 

d. Divided Property.  When property provided with a service connection is divided, each 
parcel will have a separate service connection. Changes to existing services is also 
subject to but not limited to sections 2.6 and 4.4. 
 

 
 

For Reference to above Ordinance 
 

      Sec 2.6 Main shall mean a water line in a street, highway, alley, or easement used for public 
and private fire protection and for general distribution of water. 
 
 
Sec 4.4 Installation Charges. New water service will require an application be filled out at the 
District office and a non-refundable connection fee of $8,000 be paid before any water service is 
provided 

 
 

71



RESOLUTION 17-004 

THIS RESOLUTION AUTHORIZES THE GARBERVILLE SANITARY DISTRICT TO 
CHANGE THE WATER ORDINANCE ARTICLE 4, SEC. 4.9  

        A.     WHEREAS, It has been determined that the Garberville Sanitary District will change 
Section 4.9A, 4.9B and 4.9B.2  

         B.     WHEREAS,  Resolution 17-004 will allow the District to add Section 4.9B.5, 6 
 
        C.    WHEREAS,     This Resolution will clarify the difference between single family and 
multi-family use while allowing the District to enforce single family and multi-family use. 
 

      D.   WHEREAS, The adoption of Resolution 17-004 will take effect immediately and will 
replace Section 4.9 
 
       E.   WHEREAS, The changes to Resolution 17-004 shall be: 
 

Sec 4.9 Service Connection.  It shall be unlawful to maintain a connection excepting in 
conformity with the following rules: 

 

a. Each building under separate ownership must be provided with a separate service 
connection and meter.   

b. Multiple service connections for a single parcel are allowed under these conditions:  
 

1. A master meter is installed at the property line 
2. Metered service connections are provided for each sub unit or single family 

residence. Meters and valves will be supplied and remain property of GSD. 
3. Supply line from master meter to each of the units shall be installed and 

maintained by owner. 
4. Owner will be responsible for usage on master meter, determined by deducting 

each sub unit from master meter. 
5. Owner will be responsible for notifying the District of any changes to property 

or buildings at such time the General Manager or designee will inspect property 
for compliance of District service connection ordinances. 

6. Failure to notify the District when making improvements to the property or 
buildings may result in inspections costs and reimbursement of staff time, 
meters and construction expenses along with applicable connection fees. 

 
 
 

72



 

c. Different Owner.  A service connection shall not be used to supply adjoining property of 
a different owner or to supply property of the same owner across a street or alley. 
 

d. Divided Property.  When property provided with a service connection is divided, each parcel will 
have a separate service connection. Change to existing services is also subject to but not limited 
to sections 2.6 and 4.4. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE LET IT BE KNOWN THAT, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE GARBERVILLE 
SANITARY DISTRICT APPROVES CHANGES TO THE WATER ORDINANCE ARTICLE 4, SECTION 4.9 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of __________ 2017 
 by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
       __________________________________ 
       Linda Brodersen, Board Chairperson 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________   
Ralph Emerson, General Manager 

73



74



75


	Jan 2017
	ADPAA37.tmp
	Jan 2017

	ADPC964.tmp
	General Manager - Ralph Emerson

	ADPA171.tmp
	Jan 2017

	ADPFDB6.tmp
	PRIMARY DUTIES

	ADPC27F.tmp
	Job Duties and Responsibilities

	ADP53A5.tmp
	SENIOR OPERATOR
	ESSENTIAL FUNCTION
	PRIMARY DUTIES



	ADP11B7.tmp
	WATER-WASTEWATER OPERATOR I
	ESSENTIAL FUNCTION
	PRIMARY DUTIES



	ADP4296.tmp
	General Manager - Ralph Emerson pg. 4




